
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Ty Wessell, Chairman 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
The Executive Board Session of the Leelanau County Board of Commissioners will be held on 

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, at 9:30 a.m., in the Commissioner Meeting Room,  
Leelanau County Government Center, Suttons Bay, Michigan 

(Please silence any unnecessary cellular/electronic devices) 
(Proceedings of the meeting are being recorded and are not the official record of the meeting; 

the formally approved/accepted written copy of the minutes will be the official record of the meeting.) 

AGENDA 
CALL TO ORDER  PAGE # 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
MOMENT OF SILENCE/PRIVATE PRAYER 
ROLL CALL 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA / LATE ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS  
COMMUNICATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS : 

• Administrator Update, Deborah Allen, Administrator

• Administrator Search Update (Presentation by Chet Janik)
• NMRE Update, Eric Kurtz, CEO

• Human Resources Update, Heather Cade, HR Director

PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minutes-Agenda specific) 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
ACTION ITEMS 

1. Human Resources RE: National Public Service Employee Recognition Week May 5-11 (May 7th event)
2. Sheriff’s Office RE:  Employee Recruit/Sponsorship Grant Program (per Undersheriff Kiessel)

3. Emergency Management/911 RE:
a. 911 Surcharge Review/Approval
b. Leelanau Tower Construction Update and Request

4. Probate Court RE: Technology Request
5. Soil Conservation District RE: Request for Increase in Fees
6. Senior Services RE:

a. Agreement with AAA for Dementia Caregiver Series
b. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with MIDHHS re: Senior Project Fresh
c. Senior Expo Catering Contracts/Agreements

7. Planning/Parks and Recreation RE:
a. Planning: 2024 Re-monumentation Grant Acceptance
b. Parks: Myles Kimmerly Park Playground Wood Chips (prior RAP Grant submission approved)
c. Parks: Veronica Valley Fish Purchase Request

8. Administration RE:
a. Leelanau County Policy Review Update
b. Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC)
c. Lower Level Build Out Project with the BLDHD (Cost Sharing Agreement) (Admin/Finance)

d. Lower Level Cleaning Service (Admin/Finance)

e. NRAA Recommended Language for Airspace Zoning
9. Board of Commissioners Re:

a. Point Broadband Update re: schedule and performance bond for contract
b. Recommendation to Extend Stipends for Finance Support
c. Request to Increase Commissioner Compensation

10. Finance Re:
a. Motor Pool Fixed Asset Disposal
b. Motor Pool Budget Amendment

REVIEW OF FINANCIALS 
SPECIAL REPORTS BY STAFF, COMMISSIONERS, AND AFFILIATED AGENCIES 
PUBLIC COMMENT (5 Minutes) 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
APPROVAL OF FINANCIALS 

• Amendments & Transfers
• Miscellaneous Fund Transfers and Amendments
• Claims and Accounts
• Post Audit

ADJOURNMENT 

A live streaming of this meeting will be available for viewing via the following link – 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCNQTgIgcTedF2qB8floC1GQ?view_as=subscriber 
There are two ways to provide public comment during the meeting – you can attend in-person, 

or email your comments prior to the meeting to clerk@leelanau.gov 

2
3-4

5-6
7-11
12-27

28-30

31-33
34-37
38-43

44-62
63-74
75-80

81-91
92-93
94-108

109-110

111-112

113

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCNQTgIgcTedF2qB8floC1GQ?view_as=subscriber
mailto:clerk@leelanau.gov


2



3



4



5



LEELANAU COUNTY 

OFFICE OF El\1ERGENCY l\1ANAGEMENT/9-1-1 

8525 E. Government Center Drive Suttons Bay, Ml 49682 Phone (231) 256-8775 Fax (231) 256-8701 

March 22, 2023 

Joni Harvey 
Michigan State Police 
State 911 Administrator 
P.O. Box 30634 
Lansing, MI 48909-0634 

Dear Ms. Harvey, 

Please be advised that Leelanau County will continue collection of its local commission
enacted 9-1-1 surcharge of $0.42 with no change in the amount from July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2024. 

Respectfully, 

Matt Ansorge 
Director of Emergency Management/9-1-1 
Leelanau County 

6



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

7



8



Midway Electronics, Inc.
1250 N McKinley Ave.
Rensselaer, IN  47978-2068 US
219-866-3716
sales@midwaynet.net

Estimate

ADDRESS

County of Leelanau Michigan
8527 E Government Center Dr
Suttons Bay, MI  49682

SHIP TO

County of Leelanau Michigan
8527 E Government Center Dr
Suttons Bay, MI  49682

ESTIMATE # DATE EXPIRATION DATE

21721 03/19/2024 03/29/2024

SALES REP
Mark Crabtree

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Project Construct access drive from 
Kitchen Rd to Northport Tower 
compound using county provided 
easement from Kitchen Rd.  Access 
drive needed to support 
construction equipment for the 
Northport Tower and Compound 
Project.

1 110,000.00 110,000.00

Terms
60% down upon acceptance of this estimate.
40% due January 2025

SUBTOTAL 110,000.00

TAX 0.00
TOTAL $110,000.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

9



February 26, 2024 

Please Keep One Copy for Your Records 
 

Leelanau County Office of Emergency 
Management 

Leelanau Township Tower Drive 

Attn: Matt Ansorge N Kitchen Rd, Leelanau Twp 
8527 E Government Center Dr Phone: 231-256-8775  
Suttons Bay, MI 49682 Email: mansorge@leelanau.gov  

Excavation Proposal Includes the Following Detail:  BASE BID           
 -Mobilize equipment 
 -Furnish and install soil and erosion measures 
 -Clear trees in drive area 
 -Burn brush and stumps on site 
 -Strip and save the existing topsoil 
 -Balance and compact road to proposed grades provided 
 -Place any excess fill and topsoil in fill area along the road 
 -Construct drainage ditch at the entrance 
 -Subgrade and compact road 
 -Furnish, place, and compact 6” of 23A road gravel 
 -Respread the existing topsoil 
 -Seed and mulch disturbed areas, place mulch blanket on slopes 
  
  

***Proposal based on site plans provided, dated 10/11/23*** 
 
 
WE HEREBY PROPOSE to furnish material and labor – complete in accordance with these specifications for the sum of: 

 
Ninety-Two Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-One Dollars and 00/100  BASE BID:  $92,251.00 
 
 

PAYABLE AS FOLLOWS:      Per Draws 
 
  
Possible Costs or Services Not Included in the Base Bid: 
 -Permits  
 -Culvert 
 -Trucking Material Off Site 
    
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work will be completed in a workmanlike manner in accordance with standard practices.  Any alteration or 
deviation from the above specifications involving extra cost will be executed upon receipt of written change orders and will become an additional charge over 
the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays are beyond our control.  Owner shall carry fire, tornado, and other necessary 
insurance.  Our workers are fully covered by Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  The terms and conditions attached hereto or appearing on the backside of 
this proposal are included for reference. 
 
 
Authorized Signature:                                                                                            Note: This proposal may be withdrawn if not 

accepted within 30 days. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL – The prices, specifications, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  Popp Excavating is authorized to 
perform the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 
 
 
 
Signature: ____________________________     Date: ________     Signature: _________________________  
 
P:\Excavating\PROPOSALS & WAIVERS\Commercial\L Commercial\2024 L\Leelanau County Office Of Emergency Management - Leelanau Twp Tower 
Drive, 2-26-24.Docx 

10



     

Please Keep One Copy for Your Records 
 

General Terms & Conditions 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Written Agreements Only   
All items, agreements, and conditions relating to this 
contract are only those listed herein. No modifications of 
this proposal will be valid unless it is in writing and signed 
by all parties of this proposal.  

Underground Utilities/Structures 
The customer is responsible for disclosing the existence 
and location of all possible underground private utilities or 
structures prior to excavation. 
 

 

Timeframe for Acceptance 
This proposal must be accepted by the customer within 30 
days of the date on the proposal. If not accepted within 
that period, Popp Excavating may withdraw the proposal 
at its sole discretion and the proposal considered void.  
This proposal is not binding until Popp Excavating has 
received the signed acceptance within 30 days. 
 

Estimated Quantities 
Quantities for labor and materials are approximate for 
estimation purposes only.  It is understood that totals may 
vary based on actual quantities used and payment will be 
made based on actual quantities, unless otherwise 
indicated. 
 
-If additional septic tanks or fields need to be installed per the health 
department permit, this would be an additional expense. 
 
-If heavy soils need to be removed or replaced with clean soil to install a 
proper septic system, this would be an additional expense. 
 
-If heavy soils need to be removed or replaced with clean soil for proper 
dig or backfill, this would be an additional expense. 
 
-Excavation costs are based on sandy to medium soils.  Any removal or 
replacement of soils with clean sand would be an additional charge. 
 
-Proposal is based on clear and open site conditions; additional charges 
may apply if the site is not ready for excavation. 
 
-No costs have been included to remove snow or frost for proper dig or 
backfill. 
 

Damage – Landscaping/Vegetation, Irrigation 
Popp Excavating shall not be held responsible for damage 
to landscaping, trees, or vegetation that may occur during 
the project.  Nor will Popp Excavating be obligated to 
remove or replace damaged landscaping or vegetation.  
 
-Popp Excavating is not responsible for any asphalt or concrete 
damage due to regular construction traffic. 
 
-Irrigation damage caused during excavation is possible. Popp 
Excavating cannot be held responsible for repair or replacement. 
 
-Repairs to new rock walls for damage caused by waves or ice is 
not covered by warranty work and would be an additional 
expense. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seeding Warranty 
Warranty on all seeding is VOID when proper irrigation is 
not in place. 
 
Permits 
No permits are included in this proposal.  The customer is 
responsible for providing Popp Excavating with the 
necessary permits and/or assessments prior to the start of 
excavation. 
 
Delays  
Popp Excavating shall complete the project in a 
reasonable time and shall not be held liable for delays 
beyond its reasonable control, including but not limited to 
accidents, weather, or strikes. 
 
Unusual Conditions or Circumstances 
Should any unusual conditions or circumstances arise that 
are not specifically referenced in this proposal or are not 
anticipated by Popp Excavating to be encountered during 
the execution of this proposal, any resulting additional 
costs will be the full responsibility of the customer. 
 
Acceptance 
All work performed and materials supplied shall be 
considered accepted if not objected to in writing within 10 
days of the completion of the project.  

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization

Suggested Recommendation: 

28



29



Leelanau Conservation District 
8527 E. Government Center Dr., Suite 205 

Suttons Bay, MI   49682 
Phone: 256-9783 or 256-9669  Fax: 256-7851 

 

Soil Erosion & Sediment Control Fees  
(Revised – March 1, 2018) 

 

RESIDENTIAL & AGRICULTURAL PERMITS 

Soil Disturbance up to 500 sq. ft.           90.00 
Soil Disturbance over 500 sq. ft. up to one (1) acre       140.00 
 (Each additional acre or portion of an acre)         56.00 
Engineered Residential up to one (1) acre        196.00 
 (Each additional acre or portion of an acre)                56.00 
 

BASIC COMMERCIAL 

Soil Disturbance up to 500 sq. ft.           100.00 
Soil Disturbance over 500 sq. ft. up to one (1) acre         218.00 
 (Each additional acre or portion of an acre over the initial acre)           78.00 
 

ENGINEERED COMMERCIAL 

Soil Disturbance up to 500 sq. ft.            100.00 
Soil Disturbance over 500 sq. ft. up to one (1) acre         336.00 
 (Each additional acre or portion of an acre over the initial acre)      112.00 
 

UTILITIES 

Underground pipelines or cables up ½ mile            190.00 
 (Each additional ½ mile or portion of over the initial ½ mile)          140.00 
 

EXTRACTION SITES 

2 acres or less (Two year permit payable January 1)       $140.00 
Greater than 2 acres (Two year permit payable January 1)        360.00 
 
WAIVERS 

Waivers may be granted for some minor disturbances less than 225 sq. ft.     $25.00 
(Contact Leelanau Conservation District office for waiver eligibility) 
 

PERMIT EXTENSIONS & CHANGES 

Extension requested prior to expiration date.       1/4 original fee 
Extension requested after expiration date.       1/2 original fee 
All permits expire one (1) year after issue and can be extended with fee for one (1) year.  
No extensions allowed after two (2) years. New permit application required. 
 

APPEALS 

Appeal to County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Appeals Board   $200.00 
 

VIOLATIONS 

After the fact – Construction begins before permit is issued - Double fee may be imposed. 
 

       

30



31



 

 

Agreement 

 

This Agreement is between the Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan (AAANM) located at 

1609 Park Drive, Traverse City, MI and the following agency: Leelanau County, a municipality and 

political subdivision of the State of Michigan, on behalf of Leelanau County Senior Services 

(“LSS”).  

 

For and in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this agreement, the parties do mutually 

agree as follows: 

 

Term 

 

The term of this contract shall be from March 21, 2024, to September 30, 2024.   

 

Dementia Caregiver Series (DCS) and Compensation 

 

LSS agrees to provide the following services for the following compensation: 

• To build capacity in DCS to support AAANM caregiver support programming, LSS staff will 

attend the DCS Train the Trainer session on April 9, 2024. LSS will be reimbursed at a rate 

of $150 per attendee, max of 5. 

• Deliver a minimum of two DCS workshop series prior to September 30, 2024, at a rate of 

$500 per workshop series. 

 

In support of these deliverables LSS additionally agrees to: 

• Invoice AAANM within 30 days of services delivered. 

• Provide a record of program attendance including required demographic information. 

• Provide AAANM a schedule for class delivery and plan for community promotion. 

• Deliver each program according to fidelity. 

 

Indemnity 

LSS shall, to the extent authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan, 

indemnify and hold AAANM harmless from liability resulting from the negligent acts or omissions 

of LSS, its agents or employees pertaining to the activities to be carried out pursuant to the 

obligations of this Agreement; provided, however, that LSS shall not hold AAANM harmless from 

claims arising out of the negligence or willful malfeasance of AAANM, its officers, agents, or 

employees, or any person or entity not subject to AAANM’s supervision or control.  Nothing herein 

wais governmental immunity.   

 

AAANM shall, to the extent authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan, 

indemnify and hold LSS harmless from liability resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of 

AAANM, its agents or employees pertaining to the activities to be carried out pursuant to the 

obligations of this Agreement; provided, however, that AAANM shall not hold LSS harmless from 

claims arising out of the negligence or willful malfeasance of LSS, its officers, agents, or 

employees, or any person or entity not subject to LSS’s supervision or control.  Nothing herein 

waives governmental immunity.   

 

32



 

 

 

Invoicing 

LSS agrees to: 

1. Submit invoices to AAANM by the 10th of the month, include program name, instructor 

name, dates of service, and number of attendees. LSS agrees to email invoices to 

lannenk@aaanm.org or fax to (231) 947-6401. 

 

Leelanau Senior Services and Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan agree to the service 

terms of this agreement. 

 

Leelanau County for Leelanau Senior Services Authorized Representative 

 

Name: Ty Wessell, Chairperson, County Board of Commissioners   Date:     

 

Signature:   Title:   

 

Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan Authorized Representative 

 

Name: Heidi Gustine, MPA Date:   

 

Signature:   Title: Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR COUNTY OF LEELANAU:  

COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 

By: DONALD J. KULHANEK          

On: April 4, 2024 

 
N:\Client\Leelanau\Agreements\AAANM\Agr with AAA- Dementia Caregiver Series (DCS) r1.docx 
Leelanau Co. #24-003E 

 

 

33

mailto:lannenk@aaanm.org


Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

Purpose: The Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program (Senior Project Fresh) will provide coupons for the 
purchase of fresh, nutritious, unprepared, locally grown fruits, vegetables and honey from authorized 
farmers markets and roadside stands to individuals aged 60 years and older, or 55 years and older who 
belong to a Federally recognized Indian Tribe or Urban Tribal Group in Michigan, with gross incomes at or 
below 185% of the poverty level who reside in Leelanau County
 
LCSS provides enrollment for the Senior Project Fresh program to seniors of Leelanau County based on 
established guidelines for income, age, and residency verification. To receive coupons, a completed Senior 
Farmer's Market Nutrition Program Application with signatures for attestation of income is required. The 
applicant's information is then entered monthly into the Lead Agency Database. In previous years, seniors 
received 5-10 coupons, each worth $2.00, to be used at authorized farmer markets and roadside stands 
between May 1st, 2024 and October 31st, 2024. 

34



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
between the 

Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 
Behavioral and Physical Health and Aging Services Administration 

And 
Leelanau County Senior Services 

For Senior Project Fresh 
 
Purpose: The Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program (Senior Project Fresh) will 
provide coupons for the purchase of fresh, nutritious, unprepared, locally grown fruits, 
vegetables and honey from authorized farmers markets and roadside stands to 
individuals aged 60 years and older, or 55 years and older who belong to a Federally 
recognized Indian Tribe or Urban Tribal Group in Michigan, with gross incomes at or 
below 185% of the poverty level who reside in Leelanau County. 

 
Coupons will be distributed on a first-come, first-served basis during the period May 1 
through September 30, 2024, for redemption during the period May 1 through October 
31, 2024. 

 

The MDHHS Behavioral Physical and Health and Aging Services Administration 
(BPHASA) agrees to: 

 
A. Provide coupon books based on federal, state, and local dollar allocations. 

 
B. Provide administrative direction and program coordination to local Senior Project 

Fresh program lead agencies. 
 

C. Provide training on the receipt, handling and processing of Senior Project Fresh 
coupons distributed by BPHASA. 

 
D. Provide computer-based applications for maintenance of application data. 

 
E. Conduct a bi-annual audit of program operations, and, when feasible, in-person. 

BPHASA reserves the right to evaluate more frequently, as needed. 
 

F. Provide at no charge, “And Justice for All” posters. 
 

G. Provide annual programmatic reports. 
 

H. Provide regular email updates regarding the program. 
 

I. Will refund non-spent monies used for purchase of program year 2024 books by 
the lead agency. 

 

The Senior Project Fresh program site located in Leelanau County assures that: 
 

A. Individuals enrolled in the Senior Project Fresh program are eligible according to 
established guidelines (income, age, residence). 

 
B. Program staff participate in BPHASA offered training in the handling and 

distribution of Senior Project Fresh coupons. 

35



Memorandum of Agreement 
Senior Project Fresh 2024 
Page 2 

 

 

C. The program will be promoted and marketed within Leelanau County. 
 

D. Nutrition education will be provided to all applicants regardless of eligibility. 
Acceptable nutrition education includes: written nutrition handouts, one-to-one 
counseling, telephonic and virtual education, group classes, market 
demonstrations, or other means as approved by BPHASA. 

 
E. Staff and volunteers working with the Senior Project Fresh program are trained 

according to USDA guidelines. 
 

F. Continued registration of participants up to September 30th, or until the lead 
agency’s coupons have been distributed and BPHASA coupon allocations are 
exhausted. 

 
G. Signatures for attestation of income are gathered before coupons are distributed. 

 
H. Applicant data is entered monthly into the Lead Agency Database http:// 

www.osapartner.net/leadagency with all entries completed no later than October 
15, 2024. 

 
I. The coupon book numbers of any non-issued coupon books are submitted to 

BPHASA by October 15th. 
 

J. All applicants will be provided with referrals to nutrition counseling, congregate 
meals, home-delivered meals, personal care and chore services, if requested. 

 
K. All information pertaining to the applicant will be maintained within a secure 

environment that provides complete client confidentiality. 
 

L. All applications will be kept by the lead agency for three calendar years in a 
secure location, as required by USDA guidelines. 

 
 

M. Leelanau County assures BPHASA that they are not on the “Excluded Parties 
List” and may receive coupons from federal funding sources. (http:// 
www.sam.gov) 

 
N. Will provide copies of civil rights policies, nondiscrimination, hearings, appeals, 

judicial review rights procedures to applicants and participants upon request. 
 

O. Will display “And Justice For All” posters at all distribution sites. 
 

P. Leelanau County will comply with all state or federal laws regarding 
nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability 
(as described in the nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the USDA 
regulation of nondiscrimination (7CFR Parts 15, 15a, and 15b). 

 

Q. Leelanau County will be accountable for the actions of their employees, 
especially in regard to civil rights compliance. 

36



Memorandum of Agreement 
Senior Project Fresh 2024 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 

 
SIGNATURES 

 
 
 
 

 

Meghan E. Groen 
Senior Deputy Director 
BPHASA 

Signatory for Lead Agency 
 
 
 

Printed name of Signatory 
 
 

 

Date  
 

Title of Signatory 

 
 
 

 

Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signatory for Lead Agency 
 
 
 

Printed name of Signatory 
 
 
 

Title of Signatory 
 
 
 

Date 

37



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

38



3/5/24 Preliminary Senior Services Catering Contract - Around the Corner Food & Fun - Page 1 

Around the Corner Food & Fun 
Catering Contract

This Catering Contract is entered into between Around the Corner Foods (“Caterer”) and Leelanau County 
Senior Services (“Client”) (together, “Parties”) and sets forth the agreement between the Parties relating to 
catering services to be provided by the Caterer for Client for the event identified in this Contract.

1. Event Details
Client is hiring Caterer to provide food, and related services, for the following event (“Event”):

Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024

Event drop-off time (for delivery): 10:00am (“Drop-off Time”)
Event start time (for guests):  10:00am (“Start Time”) 
Event end time (for guests):  2:00pm (“End Time”)

Location: 500 South Elm St, Suttons Bay, MI 49682 (“Venue”)

Estimated number of guests: 150

2.  Services
Sack Cold Lunches:  Bagged, labeled and ready for transfer to event coolers, serving 150 - menu attached 
as exhibit A
Prep tent & table setup: No
Trash disposal for caterer waste: No
Staff for event:  None
Catering equipment: ATC providing none
Disposables/serving ware etc:  ATC supplying:

150 disposable compostable bags, 
150 disposable compostable forks (in bags), 
150 disposable compostable napkins (in bags), 

Cups/bartending: No bartending provided, no cups provided
Non-alcoholic Beverages: no beverages currently provided 
Food Identification: Yes, bags labeled

3. Menu
Food Preferences:

Vegetarian: Yes
Vegan: No

39



3/5/24 Preliminary Senior Services Catering Contract - Around the Corner Food & Fun - Page 2 

Gluten-Free: No
Nut-Free: No
Dairy-Free: No
Soy-Free: No
Shellfish-Free: No
Additional Allergies or Restrictions: None

The Parties have agreed to the menu attached to this Catering Agreement as Exhibit A. Caterer reserves 
the right to make small changes to the menu if issues arrive on the day of, and key ingredients are unable 
to be sourced due to reasons beyond the control of the Parties. No alcoholic beverages will be provided 
or served by Caterer.

4. Coordination with Venue
Caterer will need to have access to the Venue no later than the Drop-off Time for the Event, and no 
clean-up will be provided.  Caterer will need access to Venue on-site coolers for the Drop-off Time for 
the Event.  Client will make all necessary arrangements, at Client’s expense, to get this access arranged.

5. Payment Terms
In exchange for the services of Caterer as specified in this Catering Contract, Client will pay to Caterer 
$892.50, covering the following:
Service Price Status Total
Delivery, Setup & Transfer (required for 
this Venue)

fixed 60.00

Disposables Budget (bags, napkins, forks, 
side container, sandwich & cookie sleeves)

fixed 45.00

Custom Cold Sack Lunches - 150 servings 
(including sandwich, side, cookie)

Variable based on final quantity count 787.50

Grand Total 892.50

Additional servings of the sack lunches will add $5.25 per additional sack added to the event, with the 
Guest Count confirmed by Client to Caterer four weeks in advance of the Event.  Any additional items 
added to the Lunches will increase the cost, but that cost will vary depending on what the addition is.  As 
of the signing of this Contract, the total amount is estimated to be $892.50 (“Estimated Total Cost”).
Payment will be made to the Caterer as follows: Payment of costs outlined in this contract due one week 
prior to the event, Tuesday, June 11, 2024.  Any decrease in quantities or totals must be made at least four 
weeks prior to the event date for an adjustment or refund in contract totals.  Any adjustments for quanti-
ties must be finalized at least one week in advance of the Event (at the latest).  

6. Responsibilities for Related Costs
Client is solely responsible for all costs and/or deposits relating to use of the Venue, and for obtaining any 
necessary permissions, authorizations, or other requirements of Caterer providing services at the Venue.

7. Insurance and Indemnification
Caterer has general liability insurance relating to Caterer’s services at the Event. However, Client will 
indemnify and hold harmless Caterer for any damage, theft, or loss of Caterer’s property occurring at the 
event, caused by any of Client’s guests.

8. Cancellation
If the Client needs to cancel the event, Client must provide written notice to Caterer along with any re-
quired cancellation fee described in this Catering Contract, to effect cancellation.  Client understands that 

40



3/5/24 Preliminary Senior Services Catering Contract - Around the Corner Food & Fun - Page 3 

upon entering into this Contract, Caterer is committing time and resources to this Event and thus cancel-
lation would result in lost income and lost business opportunities in an amount hard to precisely calculate. 
Therefore, the following cancellation limitations will apply.
Client Cancellation Timeframe Fee Due to Caterer at time of Cancellation
90 days or more before the Event 20 percent of the Estimated Total Cost
45-89 days prior the Event 30 percent of the Estimated Total Cost
31-44 days prior the Event 60 percent of the Estimated Total Cost
30 days or less prior to the Event 100 percent of the Estimated Total Cost

The Client’s deposit will be credited against the cancellation fees owed. Any balance will be payable upon 
the notice of cancellation.

9. Legal Compliance
Caterer will work in compliance with all applicable local health department rules and regulations relating to 
food preparation and food service.

10. Assignment
This Contract cannot be assigned by either Party without the other’s written consent, with the exception set 
forth in paragraph 10, below.

11. Limitation of Remedies
If Caterer cannot fulfill its obligations under this Contract for reasons outside of its control, Caterer may lo-
cate and retain a replacement catering company at no additional cost to Client, or refund Client’s money in full. 
Caterer will not be responsible for any additional damages or compensation under these circumstances.

12. Resolution of Disputes
The Parties agree to not post any negative information about the other arising out of this Contract or Event 
on any online forum or website without providing advance written notice of the intended content thereof, and 
providing the other party with an opportunity to resolve any issues between the parties amicably.

13. Jurisdiction and Venue
This Contract will be interpreted according to the laws of the State of Michigan and any legal action must be 
filed in the County of Leelanau in the State of Michigan.

14. Entire Agreement
This document, along with its exhibits and attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties.

_____________________________________________               ______________________
Signature - Laura Cavendish - Around the Corner Foods   Date

_____________________________________________               ______________________
Signature - Lena Vander Meulen - Leelanau County Senior Services  Date

41



5/1/23 Preliminary Senior Services Menu - Around the Corner Food & Fun - Page 4 - Exhibit A

Preliminary Senior Services Expo Menu
June 18, 2024    150 servings

GF = Gluten-Free         V = Vegan         VG = Vegetarian

Please check your preferred selections where applicable

Sack Lunches set and ready in Event Coolers by 10am 
Back Gym of Suttons Bay High School

Exhibit A

Egg Salad (VG) (45 servings) 50/50 White & Wheat Bread

COLD SIDE DISHES - The following menu items will ALL be Included: (37-38 servings each)

SANDWICH OPTIONS - The following menu items will ALL be Included:

 � Greek Pasta Salad (V)
 � Pickled Cabbage Slaw (V/GF)

Tuna Salad (45 servings) 50/50 White & Wheat Bread

Chicken Salad (60 servings) 50/50 White & Wheat 
Bread

 � Broccoli Salad (GF)
 � Creamy Pea Salad (GF)

42



5/1/23 Preliminary Senior Services Menu - Around the Corner Food & Fun - Page 5 - Exhibit A

 � Iced Orange Cookies
 � Ginger Cookie

 � Chocolate Whoopie Pie
 � Spumoni Slices

COOKIE  - The following menu items will ALL be Included: (37-38 servings each)

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

92



93



1

Lauren Cypher

From: Bob Nelesen <bob.nelesen@tvcairport.com>
Sent: Friday, March 29, 2024 10:42 AM
To: Nate Alger; Lisa Emery; Deborah Allen; Clerk
Cc: Karrie Zeits; Jen Moore
Subject: NRAA Recommended Motion Language for Airspace Zoning

All, 
 
Please see the following for your use, and let us know if you have any questions. 
 

Motion to request the Michigan Aeronautics Commission to define and determine the airport hazard area 
for the Cherry Capital Airport (TVC) and certify such determination to the County Board of Commissioners 
for the counties of Leelanau and Grand Traverse and the Northwest Regional Airport Authority as 
authorized by Section 17 of the Michigan Airport Zoning Act, MCL 259.447. 

 
This will then trigger the MAC to do the above and once done, the Counties and the NRAA will have 90 days to 
appoint members to the joint airport zoning board.  Each of the counties will need to [only] appoint 3 members and 
the NRAA to appoint 1 member. 
 
Regards, 
 
Bob Nelesen, PE | Airport Engineer 
Northwest Regional Airport Authority 
Cherry Capital Airport 
727 Fly Don’t Drive 
Traverse City, MI 49686  
231-947-2250 
 

 
 

94



4/5/2024

1

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Agenda

• Introductions
• Federal Law Overview
• State Law Overview
• Local Impacts Overview
• Section 17 Overview
• Q&A

95



4/5/2024

2

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Federal Law Overview

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

FAA 14 CFR PART 77
• 77.5 Applicability

• (a) If you propose any construction or alteration described in 
§ 77.9, you must provide adequate notice to the FAA of that 
construction or alteration.

• 77.9 Construction or Alteration Requiring Notice
• (a) Any construction or alteration that is more than 200 ft. 

Above Ground Level at its site. 
• (b) Any construction or alteration that exceeds an imaginary 

surface extending outward and upward at …100 to 1 for a 
horizontal distance of 20,000 ft. from the nearest point of 
the nearest runway]

96



4/5/2024

3

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

State Law Overview

97



4/5/2024

4

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Michigan Airport Zoning Act
• Act 23 of 1950
• Last Amended 2009
• Established to:

• promulgate, adopt, establish, administer, and enforce 
airport zoning regulations limiting the height of structures 
and objects of natural growth, and otherwise regulating the 
use of property in the vicinity of publicly owned airports

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Effects
• Definition of Airport Hazard
• Airport Hazard declared public nuisance
• Part 77 Surface Co-Regulated by MDOT

98



4/5/2024

5

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Effects
• Additional Land Use Zoning

• As of March 28, 2001 - any “zoning ordinance” within the 
airport zoning regulations area are to be integrated and 
enforced as part of the zoning regulation (MCL 125.3203)

• Any revisions to the approach plan by the MAC, shall require 
amendments to the comprehensive zoning ordinance

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

4

4

4

4
5

99



4/5/2024

6

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

• Zone 1
• 0-5 people/acre, residential prohibited, ideally airport-owned

• Zone 2
• 0-5 people/acre, residential prohibited, unoccupied (storage)

• Zone 3
• <25 people/acre, low-density residential, limited uses

• Zone 4
• <40 people/acre, low-density residential, limited uses

• Zone 5
• 0-5 people/acre, residential prohibited, unoccupied (storage)

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning

Local Impacts Overview

100



4/5/2024

7

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning
Current Process
1) Determine if the project requires a submission:

• https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/gisTools/gisAction.jsp?a
ction=showNoNoticeRequiredToolForm

2) If required, submit an FAA airspace case: 
• https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/portal.jsp, 
• By statute, the FAA has up to 90 days to respond.

3) For Buildings (not cranes) submit the airspace case number (20XX-
AGL-XXXXX-OE) for a State of Michigan Tall Structures permit:
• https://www.michigan.gov/mdot/travel/mobility/aeronautics/

airspace-zoning/applying-for-tall-structure-permit

Cherry Capital Airport Zoning
Lack of Compliance
• Jurisdiction providing approvals in violation of Federal & State Law
• Development owners have liability

Mitigations
• No current mechanism under state law to issue a variance
• Establishment of Local Airport Zoning Board 

• Provide local control
• Assess projects for potential variances

101



4/5/2024

8

Airspace Zoning Board

Airport [Airspace] Zoning Board (MCL259.443-7)
• Section 17:  

• multiple subdivisions, State hazard declaration, joint board 
established by statute

Thank You

Northern 
Michigan’s 

Favorite 
Way To Fly

102



4/5/2024

1

AIR PORT ZONING  ACT, 
ACT 2 3  OF  1 950
N EX T  ST E PS…

PURPOSE OF  A IRPORT 
ZONING RECAP

• Michigan Airport Zoning Act, Act 23 of 1950 –
Promulgate, adopt, establish, administer, and enforce 

airport zoning regulations limiting the height of 
structures and objects of natural growth, and 

otherwise regulating the use of property in the 
vicinity of publicly owned airports

• Purpose – Defines Airport Hazard Area; Airport 
Hazard declared nuisance; utilizes the Airport 

Approach Plan, adopted by the Michigan 
Aeronautics Commission – approved on 
7/19/2001 and updated on 4/10/2007

103



4/5/2024

2

Three Methods to Establish your 
Zoning Board

• Section 13 – This section allow any political subdivision containing all or part of 
an airport hazard area within its boundaries, to zone the part it controls.  In this 
case, the controlling body becomes the zoning board

• Section 14 – When an airport hazard area includes two or more jurisdictions, the 
political subdivisions involved may create a joint airport zoning board under this 
section.  Each political subdivision should appoint two (2) members to the 
board, and that board shall elect another member.

• Section 17 – This section allows the state to define the hazard area and certify 
such determinations to the county or counties within which the hazard area is 
located.

• This board is constituted by three (3) members appointed by each County 
Board of Commissioners involved, one (1) from the operating agency and 
one (1) by the Michigan Aeronautics Commission.  Two (2) of the three (3) 
appointed by the county shall be from a township (or townships within the 
hazard area) and the third from a township outside the hazard area.

10 Miles

104



4/5/2024

3

Steps for Establishment of Airport 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec 17

Step 1 – Informal meetings will be held with Michigan Department of 
Transportation, Office of Aeronautics staff to discuss the actual hazard area, 
formulation of plans, etc.

Step 2 – The Michigan Aeronautics Commission will declare an “Airport 
Hazard Area” and request the Airport Operating Agency and the County 
Board of Commissioners to make appointments to the Zoning Board.

Step 3 – Within 90 days of Step 2, the County Board of Commissioners 
must appoint three (3) members of the Joint Airport Zoning Board (two 
members within the hazard area and one outside – however, still residing 
within the county they represent), the Operating Agency must appoint one 
(1) member, the Michigan Aeronautics Commission must appoint one (1) 
member.

Step 4 – Within 120 days of Step 3, the Joint Airport Zoning Board must 
meet and organize.

Steps for Establishment of Airport Zoning Ordinance, 
Sec 17

Step 5 – The Joint Airport Zoning Board appoints an Airport Zoning Commissioner.  The Zoning Commission 
makes recommendations for the ordinance (Section 20).

Step 6 – The Airport Zoning Commission and, if possible, members of the Zoning Board meet with the Office of 
Aeronautics and recommend the boundaries of the various zones to be established and the regulations to be adopted 
then the Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing and submit a report to the Joint Airport Zoning Board.

Step 7 – Joint Airport Zoning Board holds public hearing after a public hearing held by the Airport Zoning 
Commission.

Step 8 – Joint Airport Zoning Board adopts the Airport Zoning Ordinance and sets an effective date (pursuant to 
Section 30, the date shall be no sooner than 30 days after the adoption date).

105



4/5/2024

4

Steps for Establishment of Airport 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec 17

Step 9 – Airport Zoning Commission is dismissed after adoption of 
Airport Zoning Ordinance.

Step 10 – Joint Airport Zoning Board creates an Administrative 
Agency, which will hear and decide permits and will be the body to 
enforce the Airport Zoning Ordinance.

Step 11 – Joint Airport Zoning Board creates a Board of Appeals 
which will hear and decide appeals from any order, requirements, 
decision or determination made by the Administrative Agency; to 
hear and decide any special exceptions to the terms of the Airport 
Zoning Regulations; to hear and decide specific variances.

Duties of the Zoning Board

• The Joint Zoning Board shall organize itself, elect a 
chairman, a vice chairman, and a secretary.

• The joint board shall decide its own meeting times, except 
for an annual meeting which shall be held jointly with the 
appeal board and the administrative agency.

• It shall appoint an airport zoning commission for the 
purpose of recommending an initial zoning ordinance.

• It shall listen to the zoning commission’s preliminary report.

• It shall accept the final report of the zoning commission 
when they believe it is acceptable.

106



4/5/2024

5

Duties of the Zoning Board cont…

• It shall accept the final report of the zoning commission when they believe 
it is acceptable.

• It shall advertise and hold a final hearing on the proposed ordinance.

• It shall adopt the final ordinance when finalized.

• It shall appoint (if the governing body has not already done so) an appeal 
board consisting of five (5) members each for a term of three (3) years, 
which shall rotate.

• It shall meet annually with the administrative agency and the Board of 
Appeals to review the activity and adequacy of the ordinance.

• Its members shall seek to maintain open communications with other area 
zoning boards and governmental agencies regarding the concerns of the 
airport and zoning issues.

List of Section 17 Airports

AirportAssociated City

Gratiot Community AirportAlma

Southwest Regional AirportBenton Harbor

Wexford County AirportCadillac

Bishop International AirportFlint

Ionia County AirportIonia

Jackson County - Reynolds FieldJackson

Kalamazoo/Battle Creek International AirportKalamazoo

Lakeview AirportLakeview

Capital Region International  AirportLansing

Muskegon County AirportMuskegon

Jerry Tyler Memorial AirportNiles

Oakland County AirportPontiac

MBS International Airport, Saginaw HB,  Bay City Airport, Midland 
Airport

Saginaw

Three Rivers MunicipalThree Rivers

West Branch Community AirportWest Branch

Willow Run AirprtWillow Run

107



4/5/2024

6

Ques t ion s

Jennifer Moore

Planning and Zoning Specialist

Michigan Department of 
Transportation

Office of Aeronautics

517-281-7790 (cell)

moorej55@michigan.gov

www.michigan.gov/aero

108



109



110



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

111



Vehicles up for disposal in 2024 

Description Mileage Use

VIN #1FM5K8AR1FGC41265 2015 Ford Police Interceptor proceeds to Motor Pool 134,004 Patrol Car

VIN #1FM5K8AR6HGC68044 2017 Ford Police Interceptor proceeds to Motor Pool 157,456 Patrol Car

VIN #1FM5K8AR7HGB93483 2017 Ford Police Interceptor proceeds to Motor Pool 157,067 Patrol Car

VIN #1FM5K8AR3JGA46373 2018 Ford Police Interceptor proceeds to Motor Pool 160,620 Patrol Car

VIN #1FTPX14V49FB25096 2009 Ford F150XL proceeds to Motor Pool 179,467 Drain Commissioner's truck

VIN #1FMCU9GX0FUC59805 2015 Ford Escape proceeds to Fund 542 Building Safety 212,200 Building Safety

VIN #1FMJU1G58BEF24319 2011 Ford Expedition proceeds to Fund 266 Equitable Sharing 139,790 EPS 2011 Ford Expedition 

4/5/2024 - Catherine Hartesvelt, Interim Finance Director

112



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY
Department:___________________________________

Contact Person: ________________________________

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method
Vendor:______________________________________

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One:__________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

113


	04.9.2024_BOC ES AGENDA FINAL.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER           PAGE #
	REVIEW OF FINANCIALS





